Lions District 5SE Leadership Team Meeting Minutes August 12th, 2023 Huron, SD The Fire Pit

Call to order- DG LeeAnn Haisch called the meeting to order at 10:10am CST. LeeAnn read the Lions Prayer for our invocation.

Attendance- DG LeeAnn Haisch, Secretary Jennie Braaten, Treasurer Sari Merriman, Zone 6 and Information/Technology Chair Meredith Clark, Hunger Chair Todd Smith, Vision Chair Jennifer Sigette, Newsletter Chair Katherine Grandstrand, Constitution and Bylaws Chair Bob Bell, GLT Coordinator PCC John Emmett, GMT Coordinator VDG Dennis Bohmont, PDG David Pigors, Zone 4 Chair Paul Fixen, Pin and Zone 5 Chair Donna Weiland, Graham Smith, John Beechman, Betty Allbright, GST Coordinator PDG Krisha Ashby, Ryan Boyd, Zone 7 Chair Jackie Cerkowniak, District Convention Chairperson Sam Sorenson, Linda Sorenson, Beth Fredrickson, Leader dog Chair-Terry Delay, Zone 3 Chair Barbara Stephens, Zone 1 Chair Deborah Fredrickson

Introduction of guests-DG LeeAnne introduced guests, Tom Silverthorn (service partner of Meredith Clark), Doug Stephens (spouse of Barb Stephens), Linda Sorenson (spouse of Sam Sorenson)

Absent-District Administrator PDG Joan Marlette, Audit and Finance Chair Marlys Mardian, Immediate PDG, GET Coordinator and Childhood Cancer Chair Robyn Tyler, 2nd VDG and Zone 8 Chair Darlie LaBahn, GMT Family & Women's Specialist and New Voices Chair Crystal Beckman, LCIF District Coordinator PCC Tom Grimmond, Leo Chair Tena Heikes, Constitution and Bylaws Co-Chair PDG Ray Schley, Environmental Chair PDG Jerry Voss, Peace Poster Chair Rebekah Cotton, Diabetes Chair Chris Hansen, District Marketing Chairperson Thomas Beadnell, District Youth Camp and Exchange Chairperson Shannon Grimmond, LCIF District Coordinator, Janell Christiansen, PCC Marie Anne Ben, Zone 2 Chair Tom Marquardt

Adjustments to the agenda-Adding Global Extension Team Report from PDG Robyn Tyler. Adding Baker Award to Zone Chair Paul Fixens report. Correction on the last page of agenda-District 5SE Convention will be in Freeman. Sari Merriman motioned. Dennis Bohmont seconded. Motion carried.

Group Consensus of Kindness and Respect- Always be kind, everyone is valuable, everyone's opinion matters, listen respectfully, listen actively, don't interrupt, be brief.

Minutes of the Last Meeting- Correct Jackie Cerkowniak's name on notes. Meredith Motioned. Barb Stephens seconded. Motion carried. ***Note for secretary-be sure to have secretary sign "respectfully submitted" and date the meeting minutes.

Treasurer's Report- Treasurer Sari Merriman provided a copy of the Audit Committee Report. We are in a strong cash position. Our spring forum brought in a profit and we get to retain 100% of that money in our district account. Melvin Jones honorariums are over-budget. All funds are sent directly to LCI. We also paid our Lions Hall of Fame for this year.

Treasurer's report approval-PDG Krisha Ashby moved to approve, Zone Chair Paul Fixen seconded, Motion carried.

Due to leadership changes, Treasurer Sari Merriman made a motion that the signatures of the bank accounts at First Interstate Bank be updated to the following people: Sari Merriman, Treasurer, LeeAnn Haisch, DG (President), Dennis Bohmont, VDG (Vice President). These changes should be effective as soon as possible. PDG David Pigors seconded. Motion carried.

OLD BUSINESS

Constitution By-Laws / SOP Changes-SEE ADDITIONS AT END OF DOCUMENT

State Convention-DG LeeAnn Haisch reported. Sept 29-30 at The Ramkota in Sioux Falls. The Cabinet meeting with be on the 29th at 5pm.

State Directories-Zone chairs took the directories for their areas, Cabinet members took their directories. The rest were mailed out to all Presidents across the state.

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Budget-Treasurer Sari Merriman reported.

We have a negative balance estimating with maximum amount based on Council of Governors not carpooling. Otherwise, the numbers haven't changed much. The state directories went up \$1.30 per book. Website/marketing was moved from Public Relations to Administrator. She is confident we will break even because of funds raised during the spring forum. Sponsorship will also help.

Question about sponsorship from Bob Bell. Who approved sponsorship to get advertising for the state convention program. PDG Krisha Ashby responded back that the state convention committee and DG approved this. PCC John Emmet stated that it is in the SOP that the hosting club can have fundraisers such as silent auctions, tail twisting etc... This advertising will directly help us to reduce the cost of the convention down for us.

Another question was asked about the state convention fund. Do we know what 5SW put back in? We need a report from 5SW PDG's. It needs to be \$7500.00. Whatever is above and beyond, after the state convention, is split between 5SW and 5SE.

PCC John Emmet made a motion to approve the proposed budget. VDG Dennis Bohmont seconded. Motion carried.

2023-2024 District Goals- DG LeeAnn Haisch

- 1. Grow our membership. Last year we grew by 75 but dropped by 80. Grow by 100,000 Lions in the next four years- International Director Patti Hill's goal.
- 2. Find people who want to give back to the community and get them involved in Lions.
- 3. We are all in this together

PDG Krisha motioned. Lion Meredith seconded. Motion carried.

Global Leadership Team (GLT) Report – PCC John Emmet sent a report out. He makes sure he contacts each president and helps to get them registered online and go through training modules.

The Lions portal is changing. When they roll it out, you must have an individual email address to register. He would like to see everyone register. When it gets closer to the first of the year, he will work to get training sessions scheduled.

Progress reports-

- Zone 1 Lion Deb Fredrickson will set up zone meetings with her six clubs.
- Zone 3 Lion Barb Stephens will set up zone meetings with her clubs.

Zone 4 - Lion Paul Fixen-report provided. We spent the summer recovering from the spring forum and had several fundraising events this summer. 22 clubs registered with 18 clubs represented at the forum. We made \$2300.00 from catering cost reductions from people not coming due to weather.

The Brookings club gives out a Baker Award each year. It is an award given to recognize a key player in the club. Jennifer Sigette will supply the details of how to apply and Katherine Grandstand will add it to the newsletter.

Zone 5 - Lion Donna Weiland will set up zone meetings with her 6 clubs and set goals for the year.

Zone 6 - Lion Meredith Clark has 5 clubs, 2 clubs are active. She would like to work on getting a branch club for younger Lions.

Zone 7 - Lion Jackie Cerkowniak has visited 5 of her 6 clubs and scheduled a zone gathering at Dakota Lions Sight & Health.

PCC John Emmet motioned. Lion Sari Merrigan seconded. Motion carried.

Global Membership Team (GMT) Report – VDG Dennis Bohmont-He would like to go with the Zone chairs to their club visits if possible. Reach out to him to schedule.

GET Report-PDG Robyn Tyler provided a report. She also wanted to let us know she was added as a branch club contact.

Global Service Team (GST)- PDG Krisha Ashby has started a contest. Record and report your service minutes to her and she will track those. Whoever has the most service minutes will win a prize.

Other District Committee Chair Reports-

US/Canada Forum will be Sept 20-25, 2023 in Reno, NV. VDG Dennis Bohmont will be attending. South Dakota State Convention 2023-DG LeeAnn Haisch reported. There will be several interesting breakout sessions including the owner of Lauri Belles, Minnehaha Master Gardeners and someone from the Vosch Program.

Spring Leadership Forum-Lion Sam Sorensen and his club are working on welcome packets with information about Freeman. He will plan for approximately 40 people to attend the cabinet meeting the Friday of the forum.

LCIF District Report-PCC Tom Grimmond reported that \$43,000 was raised for LCIF with the raffle last year.

Long Range Planning-PDG David Pigors is looking to find someone in Zone 1, 2 or 3 with leadership skills and will look into other zones if no candidates are found.

Hunger- Lion Todd Smith reported that we did the FOOD2YOU Project as a zone event and plan to have more events. The cost per event is \$400.00.

Vision-Lion Jennifer Sigette reported that we screened 40,000 referred 5000 kids. 27342 in our district 13.39% referrals. The vision van is in the parking lot a lot. It was only used in 21 community events last year. Try to get in and take the Van to an event. Overall data provided of who screened and where they screened. Out of the 40 clubs in 5SE, 23 participated in screening. We want to reach out to daycare centers and have a goal to add 5 more school districts to our screening program this year. We need to find club members that are willing to go away from their club's town to help screen in towns that do not have a Lions Club.

Leader Dog – Lion Terry Delay had a goal of increasing our giving to leader dog 10%. Please get the word out. We will have information at the state convention.

Marketing-Lion Tom Beadnell put a challenge to do a groups event in the spring during Lions Service Week and get the media involved. Plant trees? Send suggestions to LeeAnn.

Peace Poster-DG LeeAnne stated that there appear to only be 5 clubs participating. Please reach out to Rebekah Cotton if you have posters that need to be turned in. The deadline is October 15.

Constitution/Bylaws - Lion Bob Bell reported. -SEE ADDITIONS AT END OF DOCUMENT

Information/Technology – Lion Meredith Clark reported to let her know if you want anything added to the sites.

Newsletter – Lion Katherine Grandstrand reported 280 newsletters were emailed out for April May June and only 116 were opened. Be sure to subscribe to the newsletter and tell your clubs about it.

Pin – Lion Donna Weiland reported she has new pins for sale of the Palisades. They are \$3.00 each. She has old pins for sale too. Pin sales are down.

Closing remarks from the District Governor-

Follow our Lions Facebook page and work to get our name out there.

Meeting adjourned at 12:45PM CST. 2^{ND} VDG Dennis Bohmont motioned to adjourn the meeting. PDG Krisha Ashby seconded.

Respectively transposed,

Jennifer Braaten

5SE District Secretary

SOP ADDENDUMS

LIONS CLUBS INTERNATIONAL DISTRICT 5SE

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES

General Information:

- 1. The role of the district cabinet is administrative: to provide the link between Lions Clubs International and the clubs of District 5 SE, to foster growth and the enrichment of Lionism throughout the district.
- 2. The administrative budget is to be derived from members' dues, plus any excess operating reserve and/or interest earned from this source.

Accounting Procedures:

- 1. Standard accounting procedures will be used, involving the use of a permanent journal and ledgers. (A computer accounting program will also meet the standard if it is a program based on standard accounting principles),
 - a) The books will be closed by the cabinet treasurer by July 15th and turned over to the Audit and Finance Committee for audit,
 - b) The Audit and Finance Committee shall complete the audit as soon as possible and turn the books over to the new cabinet treasurer,
 - c) If necessary, a member of the Audit and Finance Committee will instruct the new cabinet treasurer in the accounting procedures
- 2. Cabinet Treasurer's Reports:
 - a) Only adopted standardized forms are to be used, showing current income and expenses, year-to-date income and expense and budget balances,
 - b) A balance sheet listing all funds and liabilities shall be prepared,
 - c) These reports are to be prepared quarterly as of September 30th, December 31st March 31st and June 30th and presented for approval at the district cabinet meetings,
 - d) These reports shall be presented at the cabinet meetings in hard copy format.

International Dues:

- 1. Lions' International dues are established by a vote of the delegates of LCI and changed by the vote of its membership at an International convention. See Exhibit I.
- 2. Lions Clubs International (LCI) Dues; Effective July 1, XXXX, the annual dues are, payable in two equal installments due July 1st and January 1st. These dues are billed by Lions Clubs International directly to club treasurers.
- 3. Newly chartered or reorganized clubs shall pay International dues on a prorated basis from the first day of the second month following the date of their charter or reorganization. This is in addition to the charter member initiation fee.
- 4. New members shall pay International dues on a 12-month prorated basis from the month they are reported on the membership report from the club to Lions Clubs International. This is in addition to the new member initiation fee.

Multiple District 5 and District 5 SE Dues and Assessments:

- 1. Multiple District 5 dues, District 5SE dues and assessments, and Hall of Fame assessments are payable semi-annually on July 1st, (based on the June LCI membership report) and January 1st (based on the December membership report),
- 2. Billing is made to all club treasurers and/or secretaries by the district cabinet treasurer or district cabinet secretary/treasurer,
- 3. Newly chartered or reorganized clubs shall pay these dues/assessments on a prorated basis from the first day of the second month following the date of their charter or their reorganization.
- 4. The breakdown of the Multi-district and District 5SE dues and assessments are shown in Exhibit 1.
- 5. The district cabinet treasurer will make payments from District funds to the Multi-district 5 secretary for Multiple-district dues,

6. The outgoing district cabinet treasurer or secretary/treasurer will bill the clubs for the semi-annual dues and assessments on July 1st. The incoming district cabinet treasurer or secretary/treasurer will receive the dues and assessments, thus his/her name and address should be on the billing statement.

University Lions Clubs Dues:

 The Lions of District 5SE voted to waive all district dues for student members of university campus Lions clubs in District 5SE. The MD5 Council decides annually on waiving multiple-district dues for student members of university campus Lions clubs. Lions Clubs International dues as determined by LCI are submitted directly to Lions Clubs International by the clubs.

******highlighted areas below to be deleted/updated......

Club and District Surety Bonds:

- 1. Multiple-district 5 purchases the annual bond from a bonding company for all districts and all Lions clubs in each district.
- 2. The district governor, cabinet secretary and/or treasurer, for District 5 SE and each Lions club president, club secretary and/or treasurer, or anyone that is involved in signing financial matters, is bonded for the amount of \$25,000.00 each.
- 3. The cost of the annual bond is determined by the multi-district 5 treasurer for each district. The bond fee for each Lions club in district 5 SE is billed in the July invoice. See Exhibit I.

ACTION: REMOVE CLUB AND DISTRICT SURETY BONDS SECTION. John Emmet motioned, Todd Smith seconded the motion.

South Dakota State Lions Convention:

- 1. All expenses of the South Dakota State Lions Convention, including meals and entertainment, will be paid from the registration fees collected by the host club(s) from those in attendance,
- 2. The host club(s) shall submit a detailed financial report, showing the income and expenses of the convention, to the State Executive Committee within 30 days following the adjournment of the convention,
- 3. Any excess convention funds will be turned over to the State Executive Committee PDG Association for disbursement.

ACTION: REMOVE State Executive Committee. Add PDG Association. Sari Merriman motioned, Jackie Cerkowniak seconded.

- 4. The net income from the state convention shall be placed in a convention reserve fund, to be used to cover possible losses incurred by the host club(s) due to poor attendance. The reserve fund is not to exceed \$7,500. Money above that sum is to be paid to the districts prorated according to total membership as of December 31 prior to the convention.
- 5. The State Executive committee is composed of the current district governors, their respective cabinet secretaries and treasurers, and the immediate past district governors. The district governor of the host district shall act as chairperson of this committee. The prior host district governor shall act as the vice chairperson.

Audit and Finance Committee:

1. Members:

- a) Three members, each to serve a staggered three-year term,
- b) One new member to be appointed to the committee by the incoming district governor,
- c) The third-year member to serve as committee chairperson.

2. Duties:

- a) Meet in May with the district governor and the district governor-elect to begin preparing the budget for the ensuing year,
- b) Meet in July to finalize the budget for presentation to the cabinet at the first cabinet meeting,

- c) Attend each cabinet meeting to review the budget and finances,
- d) Audit the books at the close of the fiscal year and prepare an audit report for the November cabinet meeting.

Nominating Committee:

1. Members:

- **a.** Three members, each to serve a staggered three-year term,
- **b.** Each shall be a member in good standing of a different Lions club,
- **c.** One new member to be appointed to the committee by the incoming district governor,
- **d.** The third-year member to serve as committee chairperson.

2. Duties:

- a. Receive in writing the names of all candidates whose proper certification of endorsement has been submitted,
- b. Furnish evidence of the candidates compliance with the qualification for said office set out in the District's Constitution and Bylaws,
- c. Place in nomination at the district's annual convention all candidates so qualified.

District Administrator: The District Governor may appoint a District Administrator. The purpose of this position is to help club officers resolve any computer issues they have with LCI, such as problems submitting membership and activity reports, reporting of club officers in the spring, or paying bills. For clubs whose officers do not have a computer or have chosen to not use their computer to do Lions reports, this will mean contacting the Club Secretary and/or President to obtain relevant information and to obtain permission to report that information to LCI for the Secretary.

Lions ALERT District Chairperson:

The district governor should appoint a Lion to the position of district Lions ALERT chairperson.

The council chairperson should appoint a Lion to the position of multiple district Lions ALERT chairperson.

These Lions This Lion should fulfill the following criteria:

- Willingness to organize a Lions ALERT plan in the event of a local emergency;
- Understanding of program parameters:
- Knowledge of Lions ALERT program resources;
- Ability to cooperate with local emergency assistance resources;
- Ability to mobilize a Lions ALERT team after an emergency has occurred:
- Understanding of Lions Club International Foundation (LCIF) resources.

The responsibilities of the district Lions ALERT chairperson are:

- Familiarity with Lions ALERT program resources including the Lions ALERT guide (IAD 911) and the (4) checklists:
- How to Develop a Lions ALERT Plan
- Disaster Relief Opportunities
- Personal Safety Checklist
- After a Disaster Occurs
- Ability to work with local authorities in the development of a Lions ALERT plan.

Before an Emergency Occurs

Lions ALERT chairperson responsibilities:

- Develop a district Lions ALERT plan.
- The District chairperson should share the plan with the Multiple District Lions ALERT chairperson.
- Encourage and promote club Lions ALERT plans.
- Organize district training classes and seminars for club Lions ALERT chairpersons.
- Remind all Lions ALERT chairpersons to complete an annual review of their Lions ALERT plan.

After an Emergency Occurs

Lions ALERT chairperson responsibilities:

- Serve as the central figure in implementing the district Lions ALERT plan. Communicate with district and multiple district leaders as well as outside agencies about the situation and the capabilities of the Lions ALERT Team.
- Assist clubs implementing a Lions ALERT plan.
- Encourage clubs in the district to work together in the event of a natural, man-made, or healthcare emergency.
- Remind Lions ALERT team members to comply with safety regulations.
- Work with the public relations chairperson to submit Lions ALERT news and photos to local media.
- Remind Lions to use Lions-logo signs and wear Lions-logo apparel when serving as members of a Lions ALERT team.

Lions ALERT chairpersons are responsible for rewarding team members with Lions ALERT awards.

ACTION: REMOVE THE ENTIRE ALERT CHAIR PERSON SECTION. John Emmet motioned, Dennis Bohmont seconded the motion.

District Emergency Grants:

In the case of a disaster a local club would contact the District Governor (DG) and request monetary assistance from the district in the following forms.

The definition of a disaster qualifying for this grant money is damage caused by a natural occurring event such as wind, water, or fire affecting five households or more within a community. Within the definition of household an individual apartment or living quarters shall qualify as a household.

Prior to distributing any funds the DG shall request and receive a contact person's information that is member of the applying club. This contact information shall be forwarded to the districts secretary and treasurer for follow up purposes.

Immediate Assistance Grant: A grant of up to \$500.00 1000.00 would be issued to the local club at the discretion of the DG to be distributed within the community affected by the disaster by the local club at the club's discretion.

Specific Need Grants: A specific needs grant of up to \$500.00 1000.00 per instance would be issued to the local club, after a specific need has been identified, at the discretion of the DG and 1st VDG. Qualifying instances examples but not limited to are as follows. 1: Immediate transportation needs not covered by insurance. 2: Short term housing repair to make home habitable. 3: Immediate need for school or work supplies.

These grants shall be made available to households or residences only, no business or governmental agency shall qualify, with the exception of a home based business.

The money needed to support these grants shall come from the Lions Clubs within District 5SE as a voluntary annual donation to the district. The district treasurer shall indentify these funds as "Emergency Grant Funds" within the district's general fund. These funds shall not be used for any other purpose other than funding "Emergency Grants" and shall be listed as "Restricted funds".

The Lions Clubs receiving grant monies shall provide a detail accounting of all expenditures associated with the grant money. This report shall be delivered to the 5SE district governor within 30 days of receiving the grant money. (*June 2017*)

ACTION: REMOVE IMMEDIATE ASSISTANCE GRANT AND ADD THOSE DOLLARS TO SPECIFIC NEED GRANTS TO EQUAL \$1000.00. Paul Fixen motioned, David Pigors seconded.

Duties of Region Chairpersons:

 Region chairpersons shall be responsible for the coordination of the activities of the committee chairs as assigned by the district governor.

District Governor-Elect:

 The district will pay the expenses of the district governor-elect to attend the Multipledistrict 5 Council of Governors meeting held during March. If not funded by MD5, these expenses shall be paid according to established rules of audit.

ACTION: REMOVE HELD IN MARCH. ADD IF NOT FUNDED BY MD5. Krisha Ashby motioned. Jackie Cerkowniak seconded.

Cabinet Meetings:

- 1. The cost of meals will be paid for all <u>attendees</u> <u>Cabinet members</u> at district cabinet meetings, when by necessity meetings are held over a mealtime. Cost is to be held to \$10.00 per plate,
- 2. The district will pay for the cost of the meeting room, if billed.

ACTION: CHANGE ALL ATTENDEES TO CABINET MEMBERS. CHANGE ALLOWANCE FROM \$10.00 TO \$15.00. Sari Merriman motioned. Barb Stephens seconded.

Spring Leadership Seminars:

 The district will pay the actual cost of promoting and conducting leadership, membership, extension and retention training throughout the district within the guidelines of established rules of audit.

USA/Canada Lions Leadership Forum:

 Funds to help defray the cost of the current First Vice District Governor's attendance at the USA/Canada Lions Leadership Forum will be actual cost in the amount up to \$1,000 annually. It shall be included in each annual budget of the district. Reimbursement shall be paid according to established "Rules of Audit". The registration fee at the early bird rate shall be included in the reimbursement.

Leadership Scholarships:

A \$700 scholarship fund is to be established annually to provide scholarships for registration fees for approved non-LCI sponsored leadership training for district officers (i.e. Vice Governors, cabinet members or Region and Zone Chairpersons). If not all the budget is used individual Lions within the district may be reimbursed for their registration fee. All Lions should first request reimbursement from their club.

The scholarships are for a Lions attending a Lions Clubs International leadership seminar. Reimbursement for a LCI leadership seminar may be for the registration fee and transportation per rules of audit up to \$350. This is not an accumulative fund and will be established in each year's budget. The rules of eligibility are as per the rules established for the seminars the Lion is attending.

Donations to Various Activities and Organizations:

Lions clubs and members contribute money to various activities and organizations that the Lions of District 5SE support. Such funds received by the District Governor shall be accounted for in appropriate District accounts or turned over to the appropriate agency (i.e. District Governors Expense, Club 200, Melvin Jones Fellowship, Dakota Lions Sight and Health, SD Lions Foundation, Leader Dog, etc.).

The District Governor receives reimbursement for expenses from Lions Clubs International. These funds are to be retained by the District Governor.

Donations from clubs or members need to have a notation in the memo part of the check. No matter where it goes to it has to be credited to the appropriate account.

Operating Funds Depository:

Current operating funds will be placed in a bank depository located in the city of the
current cabinet treasurer or in a branch bank of a larger city. If there is no bank in this
city or town, the cabinet treasurer may maintain the account in the bank presently being
used or designate a bank depository in a neighboring community.

Reserve Funds Depository:

• One bank depository will be established for all reserve funds (CDs, savings account and/or Money Market, etc.).

Administrative Reserve Fund:

- 1. An Administrative reserve balance of \$2,000 shall be maintained,
- 2. Any excess reserve funds and/or interest earned from these funds may be used for administrative purposes.

District Convention:

1. The District Convention shall constitute the annual Business meeting and the annual state convention of District 5SE,

The annual Business Meeting of District 5SE shall be held at the annual state convention.

ACTION: UPDATE #1 TO SAY The annual Business Meeting of District 5SE shall be held at the annual state convention. John Emmet motioned, Paul Fixen seconded.

- 2. The District Convention location shall rotate from zone to zone each year.
- 3. The District Governor and the Vice District Governors shall be elected as provided in the bylaws and constitution at the annual Business Meeting of District 5SE,

ACTION: ADD TO SAY AT ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING OF DISTRICT 5SE. John Emmet motioned, Paul Fixen seconded.

- 4. The clubs hosting the District Convention may hold the only authorized fundraiser,
- 5. The District Convention committee shall develop a budget and establish the registration fee which must be approved by the District Governor,
- 6. The District Convention committee must provide a full accounting of the convention to include a Profit & Loss Statement and registration information.
- 7. Any excess money from District 5SE Convention is the property of the district and must be returned to the district by the host club,
- 8. The district shall establish a reserve fund of not more than \$2,000. Any loss associated with the District Convention shall be paid from that reserve. Money in excess of the \$2,000 shall go to the district's general administrative fund.

Club 200 (8/2016)

- 1. The purpose of the Club "200" fund is to help defray the expenses of the District Governor Elect's eligible adult companion to attend the Lions Clubs International convention with the district governor,
- 2. The Club 200 funds shall reimburse the District Governor Elect eligible adult companion's travel expenses in excess of the \$500 paid by Lions Clubs International up to a maximum of \$1,000 to attend the Lions International convention,
- 3. The spouse's transportation tickets must be purchased through an LCI approved travel agency,
- 4. The airfare is to be jet economy and by the shortest most direct route,
- 5. Mileage by automobile shall be reimbursed per the "Rules of Audit",
- 6. The annual dues of \$.50 per member shall be placed in the "Club 200" fund,
- 7. The "Club 200" fund shall have an amount of not less than \$1,000 or more than \$2,000 in the account. The funds in excess of \$2,000 will become administrative,
- 8. The check is to go to the District Governor,

NO ACTION: THIS WAS DISCUSSED AND LEFT AS IS BECAUSE LCI MAY PROVIDE FUNDS.

Melvin Jones Fellowship:

Each District Governor upon completion of their term of office receives a Melvin Jones Fellow. The custom for Lions clubs in District 5SE is to give a gift to the District Governor when they make a club visitation. The gifts are to be made out to "Lions District 5 SE". Melvin Jones Fellow should be notated on the "MEMO" line of the check.

The district secretary or treasurer is responsible for ordering the Melvin Jones Fellow and authorizing payment.

A Melvin Jones Fellow reserve fund balance of \$1,000.00 shall be maintained. If the amount of money received by the District Governor is less than \$1,000.00 the MJF account will be used to make up the difference. If the gifts exceeds the \$1,000.00 needed for the MJF the additional funds and interest received from the fund are put into this account. Additional MJF(s) may be purchased for a Lion or non-Lion from this fund.

ACTION: REPLACE THE YELLOW HIGHLIGHTED WITH THE UNDERLINED INFORMATION BELOW. John Emmet motioned. Meredith Clark seconded.

A Melvin Jones Fellow (MJF) reserve account fund balance of \$1,000.00 shall be maintained. If the amount of money received by the District Governor is less than \$1,000.00, the South Dakota 5SE District's (the District) unnamed MJF funds held by Lions Clubs International Foundation (LCIF), if any District unnamed funds are available at LCIF, should be used first to make up the difference. If the District does not have any or enough unnamed funds at LCIF then the MJF reserve account should be used to make up the difference. If the gifts to the District Governor exceed \$1,000.00 in any fiscal year the excess gifts received should be paid to the District's unnamed account at LCIF. The District's unnamed funds funds at LCIF and the MJF reserve account may be used to purchase additional MJF(s) for a worthy Lion or non-Lion from these funds. The District's unnamed funds at LCIF should be used first.

The District Treasurer should be given access to the information for the District's unnamed funds at LCIF. The District treasurer should prepare a report of the District's unnamed funds at LCIF and provide the report to the District cabinet two times each year.

Discretionary Funds:

 This \$2000.00 budget item is allowed to cover unknown expenses that may arise during the Lions year. It is also to be used for expenses that were missed when preparing the budget for the year.

ACTION: INSERT \$2000.00. John Emmet motioned. Dennis Bohmont seconded.

South Dakota Lions' Directory

- 1. The South Dakota Lions Directory is published annually with the information received from Lions Clubs International Form PU-101. These reports are required to be submitted prior to May 1st,
- The district governor should determine the number of directories published for the district.
 - a. Four directories are furnished to each club for the President, Secretary, Treasurer and Membership Chairperson,
 - b. Each district cabinet member should receive a directory,
 - c. The MD5 Council of Governors to include the Council Chairperson, District Governor, State Representatives, Secretary, Treasurer, GMT and GLT Chairpersons, Youth and Pin Chairpersons and the 3 most current Past International Directors.
 - d. The 1st and 2nd Vice District Governors,
 - e. The South Dakota Past District Governors Association, Dakota Lions Sight and Health, plus <u>and</u> the SD Lions Foundation <u>should also receive a copy</u>. who are billed for their directories.
- 3. There is always a need for some extra directories.

ACTION: INSERT SHOULD ALSO RECEIVE A COPY. Jackie Cerkowniak motioned. Meredith Clark seconded.

District Newsletter:

- 1. The District E-newsletter is the official publication of District 5 SE,
- 2. The District E-newsletter's will be emailed to all club secretaries. The secretaries will email the E-newsletter to each of their club members,
- 3. In addition a hard copy of the District E-newsletter will be mailed via the US Postal Service to each of the club's secretary who do not have email,

ACTION: REMOVE #3. Krisha Ashby motioned. Meredith Clark seconded.

- 4. The costs of the E-newsletter shall be paid by the district through an assessment in the dues billed each club,
- 5. A honorarium of \$200 per issue is to be paid the district's electronic newsletter editor as determine by the district's cabinet.
- 6. The newsletter editor will be reimbursed for the registration fees and mileage to attend the state convention and the District Convention.
- 7. The district's newsletter will be published 10 issues per year with 2 months in the winter and 2 months in the summer combined.

State Lions Pins:

• The responsibility for designing and ordering the state Lions pin rotates each year, with the state convention's host district being responsible for providing the initial funding for the pins. Therefore, the districts must include a budget item every other year for the state pin. The pins are ordered after the approval of both district governors. Payment for the pins is made to the district, not to the pin chairperson. The state pins should be ordered by the convention's host district so that the pins arrive in time for the state convention.

International President's Certificates of Appreciation, Contests and Awards:

- 1. Contests and awards are at the discretion of the district governor.
- 2. Awards must be ordered early enough so that the cost can be charged to the current district governor's budget,
- It is customary to have the International Director (or equivalent) present two International President's Certificates of Appreciation during the District Convention. The district governor shall name two Lions and provide background information on the Lions to be honored to the International Director at least 30 days in advance of the District Convention.

Proud Lion Award:

The Lions of South Dakota adopted a program to promote orientation of new members in the Lions organization. The criteria as follows:

- 1. The Proud Lion Award shall be instituted by the district and presented to each new Lion member who, during his/her first full year of membership, achieves the following:
 - a) Attends his/her Lions club's orientation program,
 - b) Attends a meeting of his/her Lions club's board of directors,
 - c) Participates in a fund-raiser or service project of his/her Lions club,
 - d) Accepts and fulfills a Lions club committee assignment,
 - e) Visits another Lions club,
 - f) Attends a zone meeting or other district activity,
 - g) Brings a guest to a Lions club meeting.
- 2. The application shall be properly documented and signed by the applicant,
- The award shall be a certificate and lapel pin, properly presented by the district governor, vice district governor, zone chairperson or a past international director from the district

LIONS DISTRICT 5 SE RULES OF AUDIT

(9/12 & 8/16)

Total Allowable Expense:

- 1. The amount of expenses to be reimbursed may not exceed that amount budgeted,
- 2. Reimbursement of expenses in excess of the budgeted amount must be approved by the district governor before expenditures can be made,
- 3. The Rules of Audit are established by LCI and amounts to be reimbursed are shown in Exhibit 1.
- 4. Expense items of over \$250 authorized by the District Governor and over \$150 authorized by a Vice District Governor, that are not in the budget, must be approved by the Cabinet(August 2016).

Presentation of Claims:

- 1. Expenses must be submitted on an official expense voucher, properly itemized accompanied by the necessary receipts and signed,
- 2. Facsimile and electronic copies may be acceptable and may be considered as original,
- All expense amounts for the district governor, the vice district governors, cabinet members, committee chairpersons and approved lions shall be accounted for by vouchers according to established rules of audit,
- 4. All claims against the district must be submitted on a quarterly basis (preferably monthly).
- 5. Payment may be disallowed for expenses submitted more than 120 days following the occurrence of the expense,
- 6. Claims for reimbursement shall be signed by the district governor.

Transportation:

Automobile:

- 1. Mileage may be reimbursed at the Rules of Audit rate for the following.
 - a) Zone chairs' travel to the location of their zone meetings and for one official visit to each Lions club in their zone,
 - b) Region chairs' travel for on official visit to each Lions club in their region,
 - c) Region and committee chairs' travel if invited to attend and participate in zone meetings,
 - d) Region chairs' travel to conduct special assignments as designated by the district governor,

- e) Extension chairs' to organize new Lions clubs,
- f) Cabinet members traveling to cabinet meetings within the district,
- g) Committee chairs' travel as representatives designated by the district governor to make visits to clubs requiring assistance or to present programs to advance a goal,
- h) Membership and Leadership Development Committee members' travel to conduct membership and leadership seminars or new-officer training schools,
- i) Travel for those Lions assigned special assignments by the district governor.
- j) All mileage between points of travel will be determined by Map Quest or Google maps.
- Since Lions Clubs International reimburses the district governor for most necessary travel, the district will limit mileage reimbursement to that which is required in the conduct of the office but which is not covered by LCI.

Airfare:

- 1. Air travel reimbursement will be on cancelled airline tickets or E-ticket and are required with each voucher claim.
- 2. Reimbursement is by tickets of economy roundtrip airline tickets by the shortest and most direct route.
- 3. If applicable it's necessary for receipts and proof of payment (cancelled check, paid receipt or credit card receipt/statement) must be submitted with expense claim,
- 4. Any other related expense is not covered,
- 5. A boarding pass or travel agent itinerary is not valid for reimbursement,
- 6. All claims must be itemized, showing date, place and purpose, and must submit on official voucher forms.

Meals:

- Reimbursement for overnight trips required by district officers and/or committee
 chairpersons and authorized by the cabinet, actual cost of meals may be paid, but
 shall not exceed the amounts in the Rules of Audit. Individual meals must be listed
 on authorized voucher forms with itemized receipts,
- 2. No alcoholic beverages expense will be reimbursed.

Lodging:

- 1. Reimbursement for overnight trips required by district officers and/or committee chairpersons and authorized by the cabinet, actual cost of lodging may be paid, but shall not exceed the amounts in the Rules of Audit.
- 2. Itemized receipts are required and must show a balance due of zero and costs must be listed on authorized voucher forms.

Postage, Supplies and Printing:

- 1. Actual cost of postage, printing, copies and supplies may be paid to the district governor to administer the districts responsibilities,
- 2. Actual cost of postage, printing, copies and supplies may be paid to district officers and committee chairpersons to administer their zone, region and committee responsibilities,
- 3. To be considered for payment, all claims must be itemized, showing dates and purpose with proper receipts attached, and submitted on authorized voucher forms.

Telephone:

- 1. Actual telephone expenses may be paid to zone and region chairpersons and committee chairpersons to administer their designated offices. E-mail or letters may be less expensive and should be used whenever possible.
- 2. Actual telephone expenses may be paid to the district governor to administer the district's responsibilities.

3. All claims must be itemized, showing person, purpose and date on authorized voucher forms. A copy of the relevant telephone bill must be attached to the claim ACTION: REMOVE ENTIRE TELEPHONE EXPENSES SECTION. Todd Smith motioned. Meredith Clark seconded.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR ALL DISTRICTS AND CLUBS SUBJECT TO UNITED STATES TAX LAWS

Income Tax filing: (9/11)

Lions clubs and districts are required to file tax forms in accordance with the United States tax laws. Information and filing requirements and instructions are available on the "Lions Clubs International website in the Tax Information section".

In this section you will find: detailed information concerning the requirements for filing Form 990, 990-N (E-Postcard), 990-EZ; a sample Form 990-EZ, with explanations; a blank Form 990-EZ; guidelines for disclosures regarding non-deductibility of contributions or gifts to Lions districts and clubs; and a summary of provisions concerning possible tax liability for Unrelated Business Income Tax (UBIT). Additional information concerning United States tax laws may be obtained from the IRS website (www.irs.gov).

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this information, please email the LCI's <u>Legal Division</u> or call (630) 571-5466 extension 360

Amendments to SOP:

- 1. The procedure for amending this Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) is as follows: This manual is ongoing and is to be brought to the attention of the cabinet members at the first official cabinet meeting of each new fiscal year. To effect a change by amendment, a majority vote is required by those members present.
- The SOP may be amended as deemed necessary. Any amendment(s) to the manual shall be submitted in writing at any cabinet meeting and will be voted on at the next cabinet meeting.

Revisions:

May 1, 1999	January 27, 2006	August 7, 2010	January 19, 2013
July 30, 2000	February 13, 2009	August 6. 2011	July 27, 2013
Sept 30, 2005	July 18, 2009	September 7, 2012	July 26, 2014
June 3, 2017	January 2020	<u>July 2023</u>	

Dues and Assessments Exhibit I

Lions Clubs International: Lions Clubs International Dues: Eamily Unit Dues:	Semi-annual \$21.50 <u>\$23.00</u>	Annual \$43.00\$46.00
Family Unit Dues: Head of Household Family Members up to 4 (each) Student Member Dues:	\$21.50 <u>\$23.00</u> \$10.75 <i>\$11.50</i> \$11.50	\$43.00 <u>\$46.00</u> \$21.50 <u>\$23.00</u> \$23.00
Rules of Audit: (actual cost or maximum amount) Mileage (per mile) Lodging (per day) Meals (per day)no receipts are required		\$.41 \$75.00 \$40.00
Entrance Fees:		\$35.00

Multi-district and District 5 SE		-annual	<u>Annual</u>
Multi-district 5 Dues:	\$5.00	\$10.00	
District 5 SE Dues	4.00)	8.00
SD Hall of Fame Assessment	2	5	50

Annual Club Bond Assessment \$9.00

ACTION: DELETE ANNUAL CLUB BOND ASSESSMENT. UPDATE DUES STRUCTURE TO FOLLOW LCI GUIDELINES. John Emmet motioned. Jackie Cerkowniak seconded.

Revisions: July 7, 2010 September 7. 2012 July 1, 2013 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2018 <u>July 2023</u>